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January 24, 1994, for an undisclosed sum (HCDR 

1046:546). Texas State University-San Marcos 

now occupies the facilities as an educational and 

research park. 
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History of the 'Mill Tract' 

After General Edward Burleson purchased the 

property from Nathaniel Lewis, he immediately 

went to work developing the land. A year after the 
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Figure 2-4. 1855 map of San Marcos Springs showing the Homestead Tract, Mrs. Burleson's Residence 
Tract, the Mill Tract, and the City of San Marcos area. 
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construction of the cabin he erected a mill and a 

dam where the present dam sits. The original dam 

was about 400 ft. long. The eastern section of the 

dam crossed the channel at a right angle for two­

thirds of the length. The rest of the dam ran parallel 

to the right bank of the river, forming a forebay. 

The dam was a military breastwork construction 

of wood, soil, and rock and reached a height of 15 

ft. The dam created a head of approximately eight 

to twelve ft. This site, which was then known as 

the Mill Tract (see Figure 2-4), was used as a saw 

and gristmill, a cotton gin house, and a press 

(McGehee 1982). 

After the death of General Burleson in 1851, 

his widow and sons kept the Mill Tract until the 

sale of the property in 1855. Fielding L. Rector 

purchased the 40-acre tract of land including the 

saw and gristmill, the cotton gin house, the press, 

and all other fixtures for $5, 100 (HCDR C:6). On 

Feb. 12, 1866, Rector sold the Mill Tract to 

Thomas Mooney for $5,000 (HCDR D:560). From 

this point on the Mill Tract was split and purchased 

by various individuals for various uses of the land 

(see Appendix L, Record of Deed Transactions 

for the Mill Tract). In 1883, Thomas R. Fourgurean 

and Thomas Code built the first ice factory in San 

Marcos on the Mill Tract. During this period the 

Mill Tract was used as an energy source for the 

community of San Marcos. 

On Oct. 12, 1888, the San Marcos Water 

Company bought controlling interest in the 40-

acre tract of land and used the land and buildings 

as a water supply for the community of San 

Marcos, but kept the ice factory as a functioning 

unit. In 1889, the San Marcos Water Company 

expanded their interest in the land and bought an 

additional interest in the Mill Tract. 
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In 1894 new modern ice-making equipment 

was installed and new management took over the 

operations of the ice plant. During this period the 

grist and sawmill were still in working order on 

the right bank of the river just below the dam. On 

the left bank of the river an electric light-works 

facility was in operation as well. Around the turn 

of the century the Mill Tract changed hands 

various times until 1909 when the San Marcos 

Utilities Company bought the land from the San 

Marcos Electric Light & Power Company and the 

San Marcos Water Company. During the period 

of numerous ownerships the buildings and the two­

thirds of one acre they sat on were leased to the 

San Marcos Ice Company and used as an ice 

factory for fifty years. San Marcos Utilities 

occupied the land for sixteen years until Texas 

Public Utilities Company took over ownership of 

the buildings in 1925. 

A. B. Rogers became a key figure in the 

ownership of the Mill Tract in 1926 when he 

purchased the undeveloped acreage of the tract 

and the Homestead Tract from the San Marcos 

Utilities Company for $21,466 (HCDR 91:458). 

During this same year the ownership of the dam 

and buildings on the Mill Tract changed hands 

again from the Texas Public Utilities Company to 

the Texas Power & Light Corporation (HCDR 

92:591). In 1927 the sale and manufacturing of 

ice became the only functional operation on the 

Mill Tract. 

In 1939 several substation properties around 

Texas were transferred to the Lower Colorado 

River Authority (LCRA). One property transferred 

at that time consisted of buildings on the Mill Tract 

that was purchased from the Texas Power & Light 

Corporation. In the late 1940s Paul Rogers, son 

of A. B. Rogers, began to equip Aquarena Springs 

with larger facilities and to purchase more land. 
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At that time he purchased the 107 .3 acres from 

his father (HCDR 144:330). In 1956 Paul Rogers 

bought the dam from the LCRA for an undisclosed 

amount (HCDR 168:383). 

In 1958 the Southland Ice Company purchased 

the ice plant for manufacturing ice. During the 

1960s ice production rose to its highest level and 

progressed enough to produce 40 to 45 tons per 

day. In 197 6 the ice factory was permanently 

closed due to the introduction of electric 

refrigerators and party ice. In 1977 the remains of 

the Mill Tract, including the ice plant, were sold 

to Aquarena Springs. Five years later, in 1982, 

Aquarena Springs opened a restaurant occupying 

part of the boiler room and pump house of the old 

buildings on the property. This restaurant was 

named "Pepper's on the Falls." Southwest Texas 

State University (now Texas State University-San 

Marcos) bought the property with the purchase of 

Aquarena Springs in 1994 and kept the restaurant 

running for a short period. Landry's Corporation 

then began renting the restaurant buildings where 

they established the present-day Joe's Crab Shack. 

History of the Burleson Cabin 

The Original Structure 

There are various old photographs and 

Augusta Koch's bird's-eye view map (Figu.re 2-

5) that illustrate the postition and condition of the 

cabin. The bird's-eye view map illustrates a single 

Figure 2-5. Augusta Koch's bird's-eye view map of the San Marcos area. 
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cabin on the edge of the escarpment above the 

San Marcos Springs. 

One photograph shows the log cabin on the 

crest of the ridge overlooking the springs (Figure 

2-6). Figure 2-7, taken in 1907, shows the cabin 

from a spot further upstream where an outbuilding 

is visible. In the photograph, the vegetation is 

cleared, where today thick brush and tall trees 

grow. In Figure 2-7 there is an apparent 

outbuilding under a tree to the right of the house. 

It is unclear if this outbuilding was the school 

Burleson built for his children or was erected later 

for another purpose. 

Five other pictures showing greater detail 

were taken closer to the cabin. These photographs 

have been put in chronological order using the 

condition of the structure, and known dates. The 

first photograph (Figure 2-8) is from a postcard 

with a 1908 postmark. This is one of the few 

pictures showing the cabin's south and west sides. 

The outbuilding is present in the photograph and 

is located due north of the west wall of the cabin 

and perpendicular to the cabin's long axis (Tula 

Wyatt Collection, San Marcos Public Library 

[TWC SMPL]). 

The second photograph (Figure 2-9) illustrates 

that the porch was enclosed on the northwest side 

at some later date than the original construction. 

Note the board propping the wall. This photograph 

was published in the San Antonio Light newspaper 

on March 12, 1911. 

The third photograph (Figure 2-10), shows the 

north and east sides of the cabin, clearly 

illustrating the original chimney before it 

collapsed. Most of the wood siding had fallen off 

the east wall of the northern crib, and at least one 

of the north wall logs, east of the chimney, had 
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dislodged. There appears to be a bedrock feature 

or a low stone wall on the eastern side of the cabin. 

Apparently the cabin was abandoned at the time 

of this picture. 

The fourth photograph (Figure 2-11) shows 

a group of people standing on the east side of the 

cabin. The photograph shows that the two crib 

doors had been enclosed as windows. The dogtrot 

breezeway had been enclosed, though the door is 

missing, and most of the wood siding had fallen 

off. 

The fifth and final photograph published in 

the San Antonio Express newspaper April 11, 

1915, illustrates the cabin in ruins (Figure 2-12). 

The roof and chimney have collapsed, and the 

doors are missing. The west porch has collapsed 

entirely, and more logs have fallen out of the north 

wall, east of the chimney. 

In 1917 the structure collapsed in a heavy 

rainstorm and fell to a "mass of debris" 

("Historical Survey Group to Have Medallion on 

Burleson Homestead," SMR 19 May 1966: TWC 

SMPL). In 1932 the Daughters of the Republic of 

Texas (DRT) erected a monument at the site 

(Figure 2-13). The monument was carved on Texas 

gray granite and mounted in stones collected from 

the original fireplace ("Burleson Homestead 

Marker Was Dedicated Here Last Thursday" by 

Renick F. Ansell, SMR 8 July 1932: TWC SMPL). 

This monument was later moved. 

Sometime before 1960, Paul Rogers decided 

to tear down the original cabin to insure the safety 

of children living around the area. In the process 

of tearing down the structure, all of the salvageable 

logs and stones were numbered and labeled for a 

future reconstruction of the cabin. The entire 

structure was dismantled, including the 
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Figure 2-6. The Burleson cabin is shown on the crest of the ridge (date unknown) . 

Figure 2-7. Photograph taken in 1907 showing the San Marcos River, Burleson's home, and an 
outbuilding. (Photo reproduced from the San Marcos-Hays County Collection at the San Marcos Public 
Library.) 
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Figure 2-8. Postcard with a 1908 postmark, showing the old Burleson cabin . 
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Figure 2-9. Photograph dated March 12, 1911 illustrating the enclosed porch on the northwest side of 
the old Burleson cabin. 
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Figure 2-10. The north and east sides of the Burleson cabin, showing the original chimney before its collapse. 


